

## **CONTRACT**

## **BETWEEN**

# **COLTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION**

## **AND**

# **COLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT #53**

2025-2028

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE #	ARTICLE NAME	PAGE
Article 1	Recognition	3
Article 2	Non-Discrimination	4
Article 3	Association Rights	5
Article 4	Management Rights	6
Article 5	Educator Vacancies and Transfers	7
Article 6	Layoff	10
Article 7	Educator Rights	13
Article 8	Student Discipline	16
Article 9	Leaves of Absences	19
Article 10	Personnel File	25
Article 11	Workday/Work Year	26
Article 12	Compensation	31
Article 13	Grievance Procedure	35
Article 14	Extra Duty/Extra-Curricular	40
Article 15	Insurance	42
Article 16	Tuition Reimbursement	44
Article 17	Early Retirement	45
Article 18	Complaint Procedure	46
Article 19	Educator Evaluations	48
Article 20	Association Dues and Payroll Deductions	49
Article 21	Environment Health & Safety	51
Article 22	Class Size & Caseload	52
Article 23	Terms of Agreement	53
Appendix A-1	2025-2026 Salary Schedule	54
Appendix A-2	2026-2027 Salary Schedule	55
Appendix A-3	2027-2028 Salary Schedule	56
Appendix B-1	2022-2023 Extra Duty Schedule	57
Appendix B-2	2021-2022 Extra Duty Schedule	58
Appendix B-3	2024-2025 Extra Duty Schedule	59
Memorandum of Understanding (Athletic Passes)		60
Memorandum of Agreement (Job Share)		61

## **ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION**

- A. The District recognizes the Colton Education Association, OEA/NEA, as the sole and exclusive representative with respect to salaries, hours and working conditions for all licensed employees included in the bargaining unit as delineated in Paragraph B hereof.
- B. All full-time and part-time licensed educators, including temporary educators, are subject to the terms of this Agreement. For purposes of the Article, temporary educators are those educators who work, or are scheduled to work, sixty-one (61) or more consecutive contract days. Employees not subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement include confidential employees, substitutes, and supervisors.
- C. The purpose of the Article is to recognize the right of the bargaining agent to represent educators in the bargaining unit in negotiations with the Board. Granting recognition is not to be construed as obligating the Board in any way to continue any functions or policies.
- D. Educators hired to teach less than full-time shall receive a pro-ration of the appropriate salary and insurance amounts must qualify to participate in OEBB to receive a pro-ration of the appropriate insurance amounts. However, the District will notify the Association and will bargain, upon request, any proposal to pay salary and/or benefits at other than contractual rates.
- E. The Board agrees not to negotiate with or recognize any other educator organization for the duration of this Agreement.

## **ARTICLE 2 – NON-DISCRIMINATION**

- A. The Association and District affirm their adherence to the principles of free choice and agree that they shall not discriminate against any educator covered by this Agreement because of age, race, religion, creed, gender, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, ancestry, place of residency, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, military status, membership or non-membership in the Association, and all other protected categories covered by federal and state laws.
- B. Any alleged violations of this Article shall not be subject to the arbitration provisions of this Agreement.
- C. There shall be no reprisals taken against any individuals because of involvement in Association activities, including attempts to enforce this Agreement.

## **ARTICLE 3 – ASSOCIATION RIGHTS**

- A. The Association and its representative shall have access to school district property for Association business, provided that it does not interfere with or interrupt classes or other normal school operations. Such business shall be scheduled with the building principal twenty-four (24) hours in advance and placed on the school calendar so as not to conflict with prior scheduled meetings. The District shall permit the Association to have at least one (1) meeting per month which may begin fifteen (15) minutes prior to the end of the educator workday.
- B. The Association shall have access to use school facilities and equipment, upon prior notice to the building principal, to use for Colton Education Association business provided such use does not interfere with or interrupt classes or other normal school operations. The Association shall supply all materials and supplies necessary for such use and pay for any repair resulting from such use. The use of equipment (e.g., computers, e-mail etc.) shall be granted only pursuant to current District Policy on technology and Internet usage.
- C. The Association shall be allowed to use the inter-school distribution facilities and educators' boxes for distribution of its communications. Such communications shall be labeled as Association materials.
- D. Upon receipt to the administrator responsible, the Association representative shall be allowed to make brief announcements at the end of faculty or other professional meetings.
- E. Upon request, the Board agrees to furnish to the Association all readily available information necessary for its functioning as exclusive bargaining representative. In accordance with applicable public records and collective bargaining laws, the District reserves the right to charge reasonable costs for such information.
- F. The District shall provide the Association with an advance agenda, previous Board minutes and a copy of the Board packet (exclusive of confidential information and minutes of executive sessions) upon an annual Association request.
- G. The Association shall be provided with four (4) days of paid Association leave annually. Unused leave shall not accumulate. Notice of use of this leave shall be signed by the Association President submitted to the Superintendent twenty-four (24) hours in advance, except for emergencies. The costs of any substitute employee required as a result of such leave shall be reimbursed to the District by the Association.

## **ARTICLE 4 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

The District retains all the customary, usual and exclusive management rights, functions and prerogatives not expressly limited by the Agreement and/or Oregon Revised Statutes.

## ARTICLE 5 – BARGAINING UNIT MEMBER VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS

#### A. VACANCIES

- 1. The Administration will post a list of the known licensed vacancies on the website as they occur until the position is filled.
- 2. Educators who desire a change and/or subject assignment or who desire to transfer to another building, may file a written request of such desire with the Superintendent no later than five (5) teaching days after the initial posting. Such requests will include the grade and/or subject to which the educator desires to be assigned and the school or schools to which they desire to be transferred, in order of preference.
- 3. Whenever vacancies occur during the normal summer months when regular school is not in session, the following procedure shall be followed.
  - a. Educators with an interest in specific possible vacancies will notify the administration office of their interest, in writing, during the last regular week of school. These educators will leave a summer address to which correspondence regarding vacancies shall be mailed.
  - b. Should a vacancy occur, educators who have expressed an interest in said possible vacancy, shall be notified by the administrative office. Said notice shall be accomplished by personal contact or by mail, return receipt requested, to the address as declared in 3. a. above.
  - c. The educators so notified shall have the responsibility of contacting the administrative office indicating their interest in said vacancy within seven (7) days of the date the notice was mailed.
- 4. When a vacancy arises, the Administration shall promptly email a notice of vacancy to every licensed staff member no less than five (5) teaching days before the position is filled. Any new position shall be posted with an accompanying job description.
- 5. For purposes of the contract a vacancy shall be defined as an unfilled bargaining unit position that exists after the District has completed the transfer procedures and made assignments of existing staff.

6. Current employees may apply for any posted position for which they are properly licensed. Application shall be made by replying to the email posting and may include other documents as required by the District. Current employees who apply for a posted position shall be passed through the screening process and be guaranteed an interview for the position. Applicants will be notified, in writing or in person, once a decision on filling the position has been reached.

### **B. VOLUNTARY TRANSFERS**

- 1. For purposes of this Article, a voluntary transfer is defined as any change in teaching position, a majority of assigned subject matter, grade level, or building assignment that is initiated and/or requested by the educator.
- 2. In acting on requests for voluntary transfer, the following criteria will be considered:
  - a. Individual qualifications;
  - b. Instructional requirements; and
  - c. Staff availability and experience
- 3. Any educator who is denied voluntary transfer may request and shall receive the written reasons for such denial.

### C. INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER

- 1. For purposes of this Article, an involuntary transfer is defined as any change in teaching position, a majority of assigned subject matter, grade level, or building/room assignment that is initiated and/or requested by the District.
- 2. Notification of involuntary transfer will be personally delivered to the educator or emailed to their District email address within one (1) calendar week of when transfer can be projected or foreseen. If the decision is made during the summer, the affected bargaining unit member will be notified by phone call within one (1) calendar week of the decision being made.
- 3. Notification of involuntary transfer will be personally delivered to the educator or mailed to his/her last known address when transfer can be projected or foreseen.
- 4. When an involuntary transfer is necessary, the bargaining unit member's area of competence, major or minor field of study, grade or subject from which the transfer is contemplated, seniority and other relevant factors, including legal requirements, may be considered in determining which bargaining unit member is to be transferred or reassigned.

- 5. Before an involuntary transfer is made by the building principal, the bargaining unit member in question will be given an opportunity to present their input to the principal regarding the effects of the involuntary transfer upon the students and staff. The bargaining unit member shall, upon request, be given the reason(s) for any involuntary transfer made by the principal. The bargaining unit member has the right to object, in writing, to the Superintendent.
- 6. A bargaining unit member notified of a major change of assignment (change of grade level for elementary, change of majority of periods for secondary) after the first student contact day of the school year may elect to work an additional half or whole non-student day (up to sixteen (16) hours total) to prepare, to be paid at the educator's regular daily salary.
- 7. No bargaining unit member shall be subject to more than two (2) involuntary transfers in any five-year period. For this subsection, involuntary transfers means building/room assignment for all members, as well as grade level changes for elementary-level members. Exceptions include those transferred due to reduction in staff.

### D. NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENTS

All educators shall be given written notice of their tentative assignments(s) for the next school year no later than the end of the prior school year. Should it become necessary to change the assignment after this notification, the educator shall be notified of the change as soon as possible.

### E. ASSIGNMENT OF NEW EDUCATORS

The Superintendent will assign all newly hired personnel to their specific positions, which will be within the subject area and/or grade level for which the educator has been appointed by the Board. The Superintendent will give notice of assignments to new educators as soon as possible.

## **ARTICLE 6 – LAYOFF**

- A. If the Board is formally considering that a layoff is necessary, it will notify the Association President. The notice shall include the specific position(s) to be affected, the proposed time schedule and the reasons for the proposed action, assuming this information is available when the notice is given or as soon as possible thereafter. As soon as practicable, notice will be given to the affected educators of their layoff.
- B. The District shall provide the Association with a seniority list, upon request, at the time it notifies the Association that a layoff has been formally considered by the Board. Seniority shall be defined as the employee's total length of continuous service in the District as a licensed staff member from the first date of actual service. Seniority will be computed and accrue from the educator's first day of work in the District and shall continue to accrue during all leaves in accordance with ORS 342.934. Ties for position on the seniority list shall be broken by the drawing of lots in the presence of District and Association representatives.
- C. In the event the Board, in its discretion, determines that a layoff is necessary, then it will determine the educators to be retained by means of the following criteria:
  - 1. A determination of whether the educators to be retained hold the proper license and are qualified to fill the remaining position(s).
  - 2. A determination of the seniority of the educators to be retained.
  - 3. A determination of the competence of the educators to be retained. Competence will be defined as the ability to teach the subject(s) or grade level(s) required. Ability shall be based on the educator possessing the valid degree or endorsement necessary for the teaching position(s) and the amount of recent teaching experience within the last 10 years related to that subject(s) or grade level(s).
  - 4. If the District desires to retain an educator with less seniority than an educator being released under this section, the District will determine that the educator being retained has more competence than the educator with more seniority who is being released.
- D. Nothing in this Article shall be construed so as to interfere with the Board's right to dismiss or non-extend a contract educator pursuant to the provisions of the Fair Dismissal Law or to dismiss or non-renew a probationary educator pursuant of ORS 342.835. This Article applies to all release, layoff or termination for non-personal reasons, except that temporary educators shall have no right of recall after the term of their temporary contract.
- E. To conduct a layoff under this Article, the District will first determine the program(s) or area(s) scheduled for reduction or elimination.
- F. Upon request of the Association the District shall provide within a reasonable time and at a

reasonable cost (if applicable) an explanation of the process, criteria and analysis used by the District to determine that a less senior employee was more competent.

## G. RECALL

If a vacancy, as defined in Article 5., Section., A., 5 occurs within twenty-seven (27) months of a layoff for which a laid-off educator is eligible, the District will follow the recall procedure outlined below.

- 1. At the time of the layoff, the District shall provide for laid-off educators to express, in writing, a desire to return to the District. The District shall also receive the educator's address for recall notification. In the event of a recall, the District shall notify the educator who has expressed a desire to return to the District of the recall by certified mail, return receipt, sent to the last address given by the educator to the District office. The educator will have fifteen (15) days from the date the notice of recall was received or lose all recall rights.
- 2. All benefits to which an educator was entitled at the time of layoff, including unused accumulated sick leave, will be restored to the educator upon the educator's return to active employment, and the educator will be placed on the proper step of the salary schedule for the educator's experience and education. An educator will not receive increment credit for the time spent on layoff, nor will such time count toward the fulfillment of time requirements for acquiring contract status. Employee benefits do not accrue during the time of layoff.
- 3. Educators covered by this Article will have the option to continue insurance programs at their own expense, subject to the approval of the insurance carrier. The District shall provide fringe benefits to all laid-off educators as established in the Agreement for thirty (30) days during the regular school year and to the end of the month in which the thirtieth (30) day falls. The District shall provide fringe benefits through September 30 if the layoff occurs at the end of the school year or during summer.
- 4. Educators covered by the Article will be given consideration for substitute teaching that will not affect educator recall rights.
- H. To determine which educator or educators to recall, the Board will consider the criteria as defined in Article 6, Section C. Any educator who does not accept a recall will lose all further recall rights and will be deemed to have resigned from District employment. Any educator not recalled pursuant to this Article with in twenty-seven (27) months of layoff will be deemed to have resigned from the District employment. An educator may decline recall for a position with less FTE than the position held prior to lay-off without losing future recall rights.
- I. Any "appeal" from the Board's decision on layoff or recall shall be by means of a grievance filed as provided by Article 12.

J. Any educator who is non-renewed or dismissed for the same, and only the same, reason or reasons which the Board could have used to conduct a layoff under this Article, except for the termination of temporary educators, will be afforded re-employment rights in accordance with Article 6, section G.

## ARTICLE 7 – EDUCATOR RIGHTS

#### A. STUDENT GRADES

A student's subject area grade shall not be changed without the agreement of the educator who assigned the grade unless:

- 1. The educator is not available for consultation. If a grade is changed, the educator shall be notified within 10 days by certified mail. The letter shall include the grade change and the reasons for the change.
- 2. As a result of the consultation with the educator and review of relevant material, the grade originally assigned is found not to be supported by adequate subject area grade documentation.
- 3. As a result of the consultation with the educator and review of the relevant materials, the grades assigned to a particular class as a whole or to all of that educator's classes are found to be inconsistent with District grading practice.

## B. CRITICISM

Educators shall not be criticized by any supervisor or administrator in the presence of students, parents, the public, classified employees or other educators, excluding Association representatives, nor shall they be criticized by Board members in public meetings, or when representing the board in a school setting. This provision is not intended to limit professional discourse, discussion or debate.

### C. JUST CAUSE

- 1. No educator shall be suspended, denied step increment, reprimanded, or otherwise disciplined in writing without just cause.
- 2. All information forming the basis for disciplinary action will be made available to the educator upon request. Any violation of this provision may be used as a basis for a grievance.
- 3. Any investigatory suspension shall be with pay, pending the District's initiation of action to dismiss, discharge, or reinstate. This section will not prevent the District from suspending an employee without pay as a form of disciplines, if the District fulfills its obligations outlined in Article 7, section C.1.
- 4. This section shall not apply to any educator non-renewal, non-extension, dismissal, assignment to or retention in extra duty positions, or the substance of an evaluation.

## D. REQUIRED MEETINGS AND REPRESENTATION

- 1. Whenever an educator is required to attend any meeting in which formal disciplinary action (written reprimand, suspension, termination) is to be taken, the educator shall be provided prior written notice of the reason(s) for such appearance or meeting, including written notice of the right to representation. Any such meeting shall be conducted in confidence.
- 2. The representation requirements of Section 1 above shall not apply when the meeting is directly related to the regular evaluation process. Regular is defined as goal setting meetings, pre and post observation conferences, observations and formal evaluation conferences. However, at the option of the educator, the educator shall have the right to have representation at any other evaluation conference or meeting.
- 3. If an educator is involved in a discussion with an administrator that the educator reasonably believes may lead to a disciplinary action, the educator may call a halt to the discussion in order to obtain representation. The discussion may be continued when the educator has obtained representation. Such representation shall be obtained within two(2) working days.

### E. PERSONAL LIFE

The personal life of educators is not of appropriate concern or attention of the District, except where it affects job performance. This section may not be taken to arbitration.

- F. Before any decision to dismiss an educator is finalized by Board action, the following shall occur:
  - 1. The educator will be informed of the charges in writing and will be given the information that is the basis for possible dismissal.
  - 2. The educator shall then have the opportunity to meet and discuss the matter with the Superintendent. The educator may have a representative of the Association present.
  - 3. The educator shall then have the right to a hearing before the School Board. The educator may be represented at such hearing.
  - 4. After the Board reaches a decision on the dismissal recommendation, the educator shall be given written notice of the Board's action.

## G. ACADEMIC FREEDOM

The Board and the Association agree that academic freedom is essential to the fulfillment of the purpose for the District. They acknowledge the fundamental need that the educator must be free to think and express ideas, free from undue pressure of authority, and free to act within their professional group and in the performance of their job functions. Academic

freedom is not an absolute. It must be exercised within the basic ethical responsibilities of the teaching profession.

Those responsibilities include:

- 1. A commitment to democratic tradition and its methods.
- 2. A concern for the welfare, growth, and development of children.
- 3. The method of scholarship.
- 4. Sensitivity to community values and expectations.

## ARTICLE 8 – STUDENT DISCIPLINE

## **GENERAL**

Administrators/supervisors will meet with employees annually, before the first day of school, to establish and/or review disciplinary standards and procedures to ensure uniform enforcement of such standards. Each year, administrators and employees will create, review, and evaluate social and emotional multi-tiered systems of support to include discipline and consequences as needed for student achievement. Throughout the school year there shall be a continuous evaluation of student behavior support systems by appropriate building staff with reviews occurring in the fall, no later than September 30<sup>th</sup>, winter, no later than December 20th, and spring, no later than March 31<sup>st</sup>.

#### Procedure

District administration shall, to the extent provided by law, support and uphold employees in their efforts to maintain discipline in the District and serve in a responsive manner to work with each employees' request regarding discipline problems. Further, the authority of employees to use prudent disciplinary measures for the safety and well-being of students and employees is supported by the Board as follows:

- a. Every reasonable effort will be made to ensure an administrator or designee is available during the student day to handle student discipline problems.
- b. In the exercise of authority by an employee to control and maintain order and discipline, the employee will use reasonable and professional judgement concerning matters not provided for by specific policies adopted by the District and consistent with federal or state laws or regulations.
- c. Every school will have and follow a discipline plan which aligns with School Board policy. As stated above, administrators/supervisors will meet with employees annually, before the first day of school, to establish and/or review disciplinary standards and procedures to ensure uniform enforcement of such standards.
- d. The district and association agree to a joint Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) Committee. The establishment and the continuation of an MTSS Committee will address issues involving student behavior and academic interventions through design and oversight of MTSS. The MTSS Committee shall be composed of both district and association members. The district and association shall appoint four (4) representatives each to serve on the committee with the Superintendent or designee, CEA President or designee, and representation from the three schools.
  - i. The MTSS Committee will continue to identify needs and establish guidelines in addition to overseeing, evaluating, and adjusting the MTSS

- ii. The Committee will recommend the process for MTSS data collection and building-wide sharing of academic behavior data. The MTSS Committee will be apprised of the work and data collected from district-wide support systems to assess needs and recommended further action.
- iii. No later than December 18, 2025, a draft of the following resource guide will be made available to the Association and Colton School District staff for review and feedback. During the term of this contract agreement, ending on June 30, 2028, the Committee will finalize implementation of building-systems to assess, track, and determine the needs at each building and create protocols and procedures to support those needs. This will include creating a resource guide defining a comprehensive list of resources of support. At a minimum, the list resources shall include:
  - A list of who is on the MTSS Intervention Team and their Roles
    - Purpose and use of an intervention room or other intervention spaces (ex. Buddy rooms, de-escalation/calming areas).
    - The district MTSS framework for behavior and school specific classroom-based interventions that a teacher may utilize to address student behavior.
  - A description of the MTSS Intervention Team.
    - A process for referring a student to the school's MTSS Intervention Team
    - A process for documenting student behavior and submitting an office referral
    - Define administrative response procedures when a referral is made.
  - A process for communicating the outcome of an office referral.
    - Defining referral procedures for students engaging in behavior that causes harm to self or others or intimidation.
    - A process for conferring with an administrator regarding a student exclusion.
    - A process for how students will manage when they are sent to the office
  - A process, which includes staff, for addressing changes to the plan when needed.
  - A process for communication between the administrator and affected staff who are supporting students in crisis.
- iv. The committee will identify materials that may be used to assist teachers in implementing MTSS initiatives which are strengths-based,

- v. Meetings of the MTSS will be held minimally four times annually, consistent with the timelines outlined in this article, with the goal of meeting monthly and more frequently if deemed necessary by the Committee.
- e. On an annual basis, at the beginning of the school year, the district will communicate information related to the topics below to all staff:
  - i. The district's philosophy of supporting the whole child and use of MTSS Model.
  - ii. Any relevant policy/legal changes related to student discipline.
  - iii. The use of MTSS structure to provide support to students.
  - iv. Available resources, supports and professional development offerings.

## ARTICLE 9 – LEAVES OF ABSENCES

### A. SICK LEAVE

- 1. Sick leave is allowed full-time licensed personnel at the rate of ninety (90) hours per complete school year. Sick leave will be credited to the educator's account on the first duty day of the school year.
- 2. Educators who work part of a year or part of the day for the whole year shall receive a pro-rata amount of sick leave. During the school year, completion of one-half or more of the workdays in a calendar month shall constitute a "month employed".
- 3. Those on extended contracts will have eight (8) hours of sick leave for each twenty (20) days of employment.
- 4. Any bargaining unit member who is absent because of illness for five (5) or more consecutive school days or who shows a consistent pattern in use of sick leave that gives rise to a suspicion of abuse of the sick leave benefit, may be required by their supervisor to present to the Administration a certificate from their physician attesting to the illness.
- 5. As soon a bargaining unit member knows they willbe unable to report for duty, they should notify their principal or designee. If the date of the educator's return is not known to the principal, the educator shall call prior to the end of the student day of the day before they return to work to confirm their ability to return. Sick leave will be deducted even though a substitute may not be hired when an educator is absent.
- 6. At the option of the employee, sick leave may be used for the period of disability due to pregnancy, parental leave, family illness and other circumstances required by law.
- 7. Sick hours will be deducted at the rate of nine (9) hours per student contact day when an educator is out a full day, and four and a half (4.5) hours when an educator is out for half a day due to illness. On non-student contact days, and on student days, when coverage is secured within 24 hours prior notice with coverage from district licensed educator, an educator shall be able to use sick leave in quarter hour increments.

## B. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

1. Five (5) days of non-accumulative leave shall be granted in case of death of any immediate member of the family and one (1) day for other members of family and close friends. Additional paid days may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent.

In accordance with the Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA), bereavement leave can

last up to two weeks per family member as defined by statute. Educators shall, at their discretion, be able to use accrued sick leave and/or other personal leave for such additional leave. OFLA bereavement leave must be completed within 60 days of the educator receiving notice of death. Pursuant to Family Medical Leave (FMLA) and OFLA, for all other definitions of "Immediate Family" not listed below, the educator shall be allowed to use their sick leave and/or personal leave if available, during part or all of the two-week period.

2. The immediate family shall include husband, wife, domestic partner, son, daughter, mother, father, sister, brother, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, grandchildren. Leave may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent for others living in the immediate household.

## C. FAMILY ILLNESS LEAVE

- 1. Three (3) days of non-accumulative paid leave will be granted each year for family illness of any member of the immediate family. Educators who work part of a year or part of the day for a whole year shall receive a pro-rata amount of family illness leave.
- 2. The immediate family shall include husband, wife, domestic partner, son, daughter, mother, father, sister, brother, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, and grandchildren. Leave may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent for others living in the immediate household.
- 3. If Family Illness Leave is exhausted, then the employee may use available Personal Leave and then Sick Leave, in that order, if additional days are needed as required by FMLA/OFLA.

#### D. PERSONAL LEAVE

- 1. Three (3) days of leave, for personal reasons, will be granted annually. Up to two (2) days or 18 hours of personal leave per year may be taken, at the end of the school year in a cash payment at \$35.00 per hour.
- 2. Unless an emergency precludes doing so, the Administration shall be notified at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the taking of personal leave. Personal leave will not accumulate. Employees will not be required to provide a reason for personal leave.
- 3. Personal leave may be used on a day preceding or following a vacation period or holiday, but not for the purpose of extending the holiday or vacation period. In emergency situations, administrative approval is necessary for any exceptions to this restriction. If a pattern of use of personal leave on days before or after vacation or holiday develops, the District may require reasons be given for the leave.

4. Personal leave may be taken by an educator in hourly increments provided a substitute teacher is not required to cover the educator's absence during a school contract day.

#### E. LEGAL LEAVE

- The District shall provide paid leave when an educator is called for jury duty.
   However, any fees paid to the educator for jury duty (except as reimbursement for
   mileage and other expenses) shall be remitted to the District. The educator is
   expected to report for work if excused from jury duty for the day no later than 10
   AM.
- 2. The District shall provide paid leave when an educator is subpoenaed to appear as a disinterested witness in court or before another quasi-judicial body. This provision shall not apply if the educator is a litigant in the proceeding or if subpoenaed by the Association as a witness in any action against the District.

#### F. MILITARY LEAVE

1. Military leave will be granted in accordance with Federal and Oregon State Law.

### G. SABBATICAL LEAVE

This leave requires Board approval.

## 1. Eligibility:

- a. Staff members shall be eligible for sabbatical leave of one (1) academic year.
- b. Applications may be submitted after five (5) uninterrupted years of teaching service to the District. No more than one (1) year of sabbatical leave may be taken in a ten (10) year period by any one educator.
- c. A program of study and/or foreign travel related to the educator's educational field must be approved by the Administration and the Board.
- d. Granting of sabbatical leave shall obligate the employee to work for the District for at least two (2) years following the sabbatical leave.

#### 2. Number allowed from staff:

a. The total number of people on leave from the District shall not exceed two percent (2%) rounded to the nearest whole number.

## 3. Application:

- a. Applications for leave must be filed at least by January 1 of the preceding year before the leave-taking date and they must include the program approved by the Administration and the Board.
- b. A copy of the application procedure may be obtained in the Superintendent's office.

## 4. Pay while on Approved Sabbatical Leave:

- a. Persons on approved sabbatical leave shall be paid one-half (½) their annual base salary.
- b. Staff members on leave shall not hold any other remunerative positions unless such position has been approved by the Administration and the Board.
- 5. Time on Approved Sabbatical Leave as Service Time:
  - a. Time on approved sabbatical leave shall apply as service time to the District for purposes of step advancement. Five days of sick leave shall be earned during a full year of approved sabbatical leave.
- 6. Academic Hours Gained Applied Toward Advancement:
  - a. Academic hours gained during the time on leave shall apply to credit on the salary schedule, subject to the condition outlined in Article 11, section D.4.

### 7. Guarantee of Subsequent Service

- a. Staff members accepting sabbatical leave shall understand that they are to guarantee at least two (2) years of subsequent service to the District. The salary advanced by the District during the year of sabbatical leave will be considered to be a two-year, interest-free loan secured by a security in like amount as approved and accepted by the Board. Said loan shall be canceled after the two (2) years' subsequent service to the District. Repayment of the above loan must be made on a prorated basis if the two-year subsequent service is not fulfilled.
- b. Death or extended terminal illness which prevents an educator from completing this full two (2) years will cancel the loan.

#### H. FAMILY LEAVE LAW

The District shall grant family leave in accordance with state and federal law.

#### I. UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

## 1. General Unpaid Leave Provisions:

- a. A leave of absence may be granted as provided below after three (3) consecutive years of service with the District unless otherwise mutually agreed or required by law. Leave may be granted for a period up to two (2) years. Each application will be considered on its own merits.
- b. Leaves must be authorized by the District upon recommendation of the Superintendent at least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of the period for which leave is granted.
- c . A full-time educator may request a part-time leave in combination with assignment to a part time teaching position in order to maintain full-time status. At the end of the leave period, the educator shall be assigned to a full-time position, upon request of the educator. If the educator and the District mutually agree to a part-time position, without a corresponding part-time leave, the educator's full-time status is lost. Granting of part-time leave as outlined above shall be at the sole discretion of the District.

#### 2. Return from Leave:

All benefits to which an educator was entitled at the time the leave of absence commenced, including seniority and unused accumulated sick leave, shall be restored upon return as fully as if the leave had never been taken. The reinstatement shall be to the educator's former position if the return from leave occurs before the end of the school year the leave commenced. Otherwise, the assignment will be to a position substantially equivalent.

## 3. Fringe Benefits:

During the terms of leave granted, the District shall allow the educator to purchase any fringe benefits available to active educators as fully as though the educator were on active duty with approval of the insurance carrier. Purchase of fringe benefits shall be paid monthly, in advance, in accordance with the carrier's requirements.

## 4. Extensions and Renewals

All extension and renewals of leave shall be applied for in writing by February 1.

The District will notify the applicant by April 1 of acceptance or rejection for the request.

J. Leave taken under this contract that is also required by the Oregon Family Leave Act and/or the Family Medical Leave Act fulfills the District's obligation to provide such leave and counts towards the employee's annual leave allotment.

## ARTICLE 10 – PERSONNEL FILE

- A. The educator will have the opportunity to review, upon request, the contents of his/her personnel file. This file shall contain complete copies of materials relevant to the educator's employment. An educator may have a representative as chosen present with him/her to review his/her file. Working files may be maintained by principals at the building site.
- B. A copy of any material other than material confidential under law, attendance reports or payroll information, will be given to the educator prior to its placement in the educator's personnel file. This initial copy shall be provided at no cost to the educator.
- C. The educator will have the right to add comment to any material placed in his/her personnel file.
- D. The educator will, upon request, receive a copy of any material in the personnel file. The District will make an "at cost" charge for copies furnished.
- E. The District may, from time to time, create a transition file in which documents may be placed for a limited or specific amount of time. Documents entered into a transitional file may be considered to be temporary documents and they may be destroyed upon removal. Documents in a transitional file that are subsequently placed into the working file or the personnel file shall be subject to the provisions set forth above.

## ARTICLE 11 – WORKDAY/WORK YEAR

#### A. WORK YEAR

Based on a four (4) day school week, the school year set by the District shall be up to 172 contract days as follows:

- 1. Up to one hundred forty-four (144) student contact days.
- 2. Five (5) paid holidays as follows:

Labor Day; Veteran's Day; Thanksgiving Day; President's Day; Memorial Day.

3. Up to ten (10) workdays as follows:

A total of four (4) workdays to be used at the beginning and/or end of the school year; these days are specifically to be used to prepare for the start and end of a school year, and a total of four (4) workdays to be used at the end of each grading period.

- A. The district and association agree to allow employees the option to report to work remotely for three (3) workdays during each calendar year. Each administrator will create a staffing schedule for their building for each workday. Additionally, the district and the association agree to allow employees the option to report to work remotely on grading days.
- B. Administration can require an individual teacher to work in person on workdays if the district administration supervisor deems that the individual teacher is not satisfactorily completing an objective list of requirements that were communicated to the individual teacher ahead of time, in writing, due to performance issues.
- C. Part Time Employment: Total workdays will be pro-rated based on percentage for their position (FTE).

Workdays are not to be used for meetings (including IEP meetings), parent/educator conferences, to supervise students, or in-service training except when emergencies arise and meetings would not exceed one (1) hour.

Designated workdays shall be used predominantly for the purpose of preparing grade reports and/or preparing for the next period of teaching. Parent/educator conferences will not be held on designated workdays. If State mandated student contact time should increase the Association and the District may discuss reducing the number of work days.

4. Up to nine (9) in-service days, to be determined by the Administration after collaboration with teaching staff at each building. This collaboration will include at least one building representative from the Association. The parties are committed to making in-service days' educator directed and student centered.

Upon agreement, the Association and administration at the building level shall be able to modify the workday and in-service day schedules up to 90 minutes to meet building level needs.

Part Time Employment: Total in-service days may be pro-rated based on percentage of the employees position (FTE). Administration may require part-time employees to work a full day, and in such cases, extra pay will be provided.

- 5. A total of four (4) Parent-teacher conference Days
  - a. The district will use one day, the first day of each pre-scheduled conference session, for in-person conference days each semester and the other day will be flexible. The district and association agree to allow employees the option to report to work remotely on the second conference day of each session
  - b. Administration can require an individual teacher to work in person on all conference days if the district administration supervisor deems that the individual teacher is not satisfactorily completing an objective list of requirements that were communicated to the individual teacher ahead of time, in writing, due to performance issues.
  - c. Part Time Employment: Total parent teacher conference days may be pro-rated based on percentage of the employee's position (FTE). Administration may require part-time employees to work a full day, and in such cases, extra pay will be provided.
- 6. The workday at the end of the second semester may be used by the District as a student contact day if make-up days are needed, provided at least one-half (1/2) of that day is reserved as a workday.
- 7. Educators who are requested to compile and/or post grades on days that are scheduled to be in ½ in-service and ½ workday will be given the entire day to prepare grades.

#### **B. EMERGENCY CLOSURES**

On days when school(s) is closed to students and staff due to inclement weather, loss of electricity or other emergencies, educators shall not be required to work, unless remote learning and/or working is required. Educator pay shall not be reduced for such lost days. Only conferences and lost instructional hours (student contact hours) shall be rescheduled with students. In-Service, work hours, or after school event times lost shall not be rescheduled. However, the District, after consultation with the Association, may reschedule such lost days at no extra pay for staff if makeup days are needed to meet state instructional hours requirements. The District will notify teachers of any scheduled make-up hours no later than the second Monday in May each year for closures that have happened by that date.

## C. WORK WEEK

- 1. In general, a student contact day will be nine (9) hours in length. Educators' workdays, in-service days, and parent/educator conference days will be eight (8) hours in length and shall not occur during a five-day student contact week.
- 2. When the work week consists of exactly four (4) student contact days, the work week shall be thirty-six (36) hours in length. When the work week consists of exactly four (4) student contact days and one (1) workday/in-service day/conference day, the week shall be forty-four (44) hours in length. When the work week consists of exactly five (5) student contact days, the work week shall be forty (40) hours in length, class periods shall follow a five (5) day schedule, and student contact time shall be reduced by hour per day.
- 3. A duty-free lunch period of thirty (30) minutes, free of all student supervisory tasks, will be granted to all educators of this District who work five (5) or more hours in a day.
- 4. Scheduling staff for supervision of bus students, lunchroom duty, playground duty, study halls and other like functions will be done by the administration in consultation with the staff.

### D. WORKDAY

- 1. If there is a five (5) day student week, the workday shall not exceed eight (8) hours per day and student contact time shall be reduced by one hour per day.
- 2. If there is a four (4) day student week, the workday shall not exceed nine (9) hours per day.
- 3. Building administrators shall not schedule more than four meetings per month and will try whenever possible to not occur during preparation time. Bargaining unit members who do not receive their allotted preparation time daily or weekly due to

scheduled meetings shall turn in a timecard for compensation if they lose more than fifteen (15) minutes of preparation time. If needed, a building administrator may schedule a quick stand-up meeting, not to exceed 10 minutes in duration twice per month, should the information to be shared with building staff required immediate dissemination.

- 4. IEP meetings shall be rotated amongst teaching staff except at the primary level, at the secondary level with a maximum of 4 IEP meetings per month, as needed to minimize an excessive level of meetings an individual educator (excluding the case manager) is responsible to participate in the based on their teaching assignment.
- 5. If a bargaining unit member needs to make an adjustment to their schedule, they should contact their administrator for pre-approval.
- 6. If a bargaining unit member needs a bio break, they should contact the front desk to request coverage.

#### E. PREPARATION TIME

- 1. High school and middle school educators shall have a preparation period during the student day equal to one class period.
- 2. Elementary school educators shall receive, after students leave for the day, 60 minutes of daily uninterrupted preparation time.
- 3. Those educators who have not been provided with a preparation period during the time specified in the contract will be reimbursed at the per diem rate of pay for the lost preparation period.

The District shall assign other non-classroom licensed staff to cover classrooms in the absence of a substitute educator, first, before requiring a classroom educator to supervise multiple classes. In the event the classroom educator is assigned, they shall receive the daily or hourly substitute teacher rate for covering multiple classes.

## F. SUPERVISION RESPONSIBILITIES

- 1. Educators shall have supervision responsibilities for students during class time, passing times and all other times during the student day and while students are on school property or approved school trips.
- 2. At after hour events or activities, educators have no specific supervision responsibilities when they attend as parents or spectators. However, educators may intervene or be asked to assist other adults in dealing with student behavior.

- 3. No educator shall be disciplined, negatively evaluated, or suffer any reprisal for declining to deal with student behaviors at after hour events or activities when attending as a parent or spectator.
- 4. If the educator chooses to provide assistance at after hour events, they will not be disciplined, negatively evaluated or subject to any reprisal for such involvement, as long as the actions by the employee were reasonable and prudent, considering the circumstances.
- 5. Educators shall not be responsible for supervising or controlling adults at after hour events or activities.

## G. DISTRICT-REQUIRED TRAININGS:

All mandatory training, including online training and new responsibilities required, will be within educators' work hours (outside of class and prep period during student contact day) or held on in-service days.

## **ARTICLE 12 – COMPENSATION**

### A. SALARY SCHEDULES

- 1. The salary schedules for educators are based on 172-day contracts. The 2025-2026 schedule is attached to this Agreement as Appendix A-1, and by this reference is incorporated herein. It represents a COLA adjustment on the base salary (BA) of -4% over the 2024-2025 salary schedule. The salary schedule for 2026-2027 represents a 4% increase over the 2025-2026 salary schedule. The 2026-2027 schedule is attached to this Agreement as Appendix A-2. The salary schedule for 2027-2028 represents a 4% increase over the 2026-2027 salary schedule. The 2027-2028 schedule is attached to this agreement as Appendix A-3.
- 2. Effective July 1, 2022, the vertical steps in the salary schedules shall return to a numerical format with no more than 15 vertical steps in an educational column for the 2022-23 salary schedule to correct an anomaly in the MA+45 educational column with Step 15.
- 3. Effective August of 2017, educators shall pay, pre-taxed, the PERS or OPSRP 6% employee portion, and the district shall increase salaries by 6% on the 2017-2018 salary schedule to reflect the change in the PERS/OPSRP pick-up.

#### B. CONTRACT PERIOD

The contract period will not exceed one hundred seventy-two (172) days unless stated otherwise on the individual contracts.

#### C. EXTENDED CONTRACT FORMULA

An educator's salary, as computed by the provisions of the contract, will be divided by the number of days in the contract period, stated in Article 11, Section B, to determine daily rate. This rate shall then be multiplied by the number of days in the extended contract period to determine total salary for the extended contract.

#### D. SALARY PLACEMENT AND MOVEMENT

- 1. Educators new to the District shall be placed on the salary schedule at the licensed experience level indicated by years of service (which may include) their CTE respective field. Years of service equates to working half-time or more, for at least 135 days of that year, in an accredited school.
- 2. Educators new to the District will be placed on a salary column according to their college degree(s) and the number of college credit hours on file that the Superintendent determines to be relevant to the assignment or any other assignment projected by the District. Only these credit hours earned after issuance of the initial teaching license shall count toward placement or horizontal advancement on the salary schedule. Speech Language Pathologist, Registered Nurse, Psychologist,

- Clinical Social Worker, Physical Therapist, and Occupational Therapist, with specialized degrees and/or licenses, shall be placed on the MA+45 column at the appropriate experience level.
- 3. Following initial placement, educators shall advance one (1) step vertically on the salary schedule for each year of completed service of one hundred thirty-five (135) contract days or more in the District, subject to the limits of the salary schedule.
- 4. Following initial placement, educators, shall advance horizontally on the salary schedule as additional credit hours are earned. Academic credits will be in the form of approved college quarter-hours or in the approved individual research or travel study. All courses taken for credit that will accrue toward the next level on the salary schedule must 1) be reasonably related to the educator's current assignment or another assignment projected by the district, or 2) must be part of a planned degree or certification program approved in advance by the Superintendent, or 3) must otherwise have prior approval of the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall not withhold approval in an arbitrary or capricious manner.
- 5. Credits for column advancement must be documented to the District on a transcript no later than October 15 of any year, together with a written request for a column change. The salary change shall then be effective from the beginning of that contract year. Salary column changes shall be effective February 1 of any year if transcripts are presented to the District by January 15.
- 6. After consultation with the Association, the District shall have the discretion of placing new in-person certified hires on the salary schedule in positions without the specific education/experience as outlined in this section of Article 12.
- 7. Effective July 1, 2022, all bargaining unit employees shall be placed on the 2022-2023 salary based on their years of teaching experience.
- E. Attached to each educator's contract, the District will provide a statement of how they arrive at each educator's salary, including accumulated sick leave, at the beginning of each school year.

#### F. PAY FOR LOSS OF PREPARATION

- 1. Educators may be asked by the Administration to cover for an absent colleague during assigned preparation time. However, all such coverage is strictly voluntary. Educators may decline such requests.
- 2. Educators who lose their contractual preparation time to cover for an absent colleague shall be paid their per diem rate of pay per period lost.

#### G. COMMITTEE WORK/CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT

1. Educators who participate in committee work for the District outside the contracted

workday, in special classes outside the workday, in summer programs or projects or in approved individual curriculum development shall be paid at the rate of \$35 per hour.

- 2. When educator participation in committee work is desired, educators shall first be offered the chance to volunteer for such work. However, the District reserves the right to assign specific educator(s) to committee work.
- 3. Normally, all work shall be done in committee. If the committee chair assigns work outside of the committee for expertise in subject matter, such time shall be paid at the educator's hourly rate. Committees may include, but are not limited to, Textbook Selection/Review, Curriculum Development and Building Leadership Teams.
- 4. If committee work interferes with assigned preparation time, compensation shall be in accordance with Article 11, section F above.

#### H. DEPARTMENT HEADS/TEAM LEADERS

Educators who accept additional responsibilities, as requested by the Administration, to serve as department heads or team leaders will be compensated at their hourly rate for time spent. Compensation for any person accepting these responsibilities shall not exceed \$450 per year. The method for determining such responsibilities and who will fill said responsibilities will be recommended by the Administration in consultation with the staff and approved by the Board.

#### I. GAS MILEAGE

District approved educator travel will be paid at the established District rate for all authorized School District business with the approval of the building principal. Educators traveling between schools would receive a stipend at the end of each school year for the round trip daily between the following school sites:

CES to CMS – \$100.00 HS to MS or reverse – \$250.00 HS to CES to CMS – \$355.00

#### J. DIRECT DEPOSIT

The District will provide direct deposit of pay checks to the financial institution of the employee's choice. Effective for all new employees beginning 2009-2010 school year direct deposit will be mandatory for all new employees.

## K. SUMMER CHECKS

1. Summer checks (July and August) shall be paid in June. If there is an unusual or emergency circumstance, adjustments may be made by the District with prior agreement with the Association.

## L. NATIONAL BOARD CERTIFICATIONS/PH. D DEGREES

A stipend of \$2000.00 will be given, each year, to educators with Nation Board Certification and/or PH. D degree in their respective fields.

## M. LONGEVITY STIPEND

Effective on the educator's June paycheck, there will be a \$1500 annual salary supplement for all educators who have worked at least 12 years in the Colton School District and who did not receive a vertical step on the current salary schedule.

## ARTICLE 13 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

### A. DEFINITIONS

- 1. "Grievant" shall mean a member of the bargaining unit or the Colton Education Association.
- 2. "Grievance" shall mean a claim by a grievant that a dispute or disagreement exists involving interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement. Grievances alleging that a District Policy or Administrative Regulation has been violated shall be grievable, but only to the Board level.
- 3. "Party in Interest" is the person or persons making the complaint and the person or persons against whom the complaint is made.
- 4. "Representative" is the one who may advise a party in interest.
- 5. "Immediate Supervisor" is the one who has direct administrative or supervisory responsibilities over the grievant in the area of grievance.
- 6. "Hearing Officer" is any impartial individual who shall conduct the procedures and/or rule on the issues presented at level two and level three.
- 7. "Days" when used in the Article, except as otherwise indicated, shall mean the grievant's working days.
- 8. "Arbitrator" is the person making the decision that is final and binding on all parties in interest as stated in level four.

#### B. GENERAL PROCEDURES

The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, equitable solutions to the problems which may, from time to time, arise affecting members of this bargaining unit. Both parties in interest agree that these proceedings will be kept informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level in the procedure.

- 1. These procedures should be processed as rapidly as possible. The number of days indicated for settlement or appeal at each level should be considered a maximum. The time limits can be extended by written mutual consent of the parties involved at any level of the procedure.
- 2. The time period for responding to the grievance at each level shall be no longer than ten (10) days unless extended by mutual agreement. The day of notification shall be the start of grievance procedure.
- 3. Any party of Colton Education Association has a right to representation of their own choosing at each level of this grievance procedure.

- 4. There shall be no restraint, interference, discrimination or reprisal exerted on any person concerned with the resolution of grievances.
- 5. Failure at any level of this procedure by the grievant to appeal a grievance to the next level within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision rendered at that level. Failure at any level of this procedure to communicate the decision in writing on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next level.
- 6. Forms for processing grievances shall be prepared by the Superintendent in cooperation with the Association and will be printed and given appropriate distribution by the parties so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure.
- 7. All parties will avoid interruption of a classroom and/or any other school-sponsored activity and will process grievances so they will not interfere with any school process.
- 8. All parties in interest may process grievances with the administration outside the student contact day. Investigation of grievances by or among bargaining unit members must be done outside the workday.
- 9. Each grievance shall have to be initiated, in writing, within fifteen (15) days of the individual, and twenty (20) days for the Association, from the time of first knowledge of the alleged violation. Failure to initiate the grievance within the time allotted shall be grounds to waive the grievance.
- 10. In the event a grievance is filed at such time that it cannot be processed through all the steps in this grievance procedure by the end of the school year, and if left unresolved until the beginning of the following school year could result in irreparable harm to a party of interest, the time limits set forth therein shall be reduced so that the grievance procedure may be exhausted prior to the end of the school year, or as soon thereafter as practicable.
- 11. Any levels of a grievance procedure may be waived with mutual agreement of both parties in interest.
- 12. Any individual(s) acting as hearing officer(s) except for the Superintendent shall not have previously been involved in the events leading to the grievance.
- 13. Both parties in interest shall have the opportunity to present arguments and evidence orally, as well as in writing. Both parties shall also have the opportunity to confront and cross-examine witnesses.
- 14. The determination of the grievance shall rest solely on the evidence presented at the hearing.
- 15. All communications, appeals and findings shall be sent by registered mail, signed

receipt requested, or, presented to the individual parties concerned, face-to-face when any activity above the first level of this procedure is involved.

- 16. All documents, communications, and records dealing with a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and SHALL NOT be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 17. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board, Association, or administration against any party interest, any representative, Association or participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 18. Pursuant to ORS 342.895(5) a moratorium shall be placed on grievance processions while an employee is on a plan of assistance for improvement for grievances related to evaluation procedures on the plan of assistance for improvement. The District will notify the employee and the Association when the plan is no longer in effect and the moratorium is lifted.

#### C. LEVELS

## 1. Level One (Unit Level)

The grievant shall first discuss their grievance with their principal or immediate supervisor, with the objective of resolving the matter informally. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of their grievance, they may file a written grievance within ten (10) working days, with their immediate supervisor. The immediate supervisor shall communicate their decision in writing to the grievant within ten (10) days from receipt of the grievance.

### 2. Level Two (District Level)

- a. If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered by the principal, they may appeal in writing to the Superintendent within ten (10) working days from the time they received the Level One decision in writing. After consultation with the grievant, the Superintendent shall give written notice of the time and place of a hearing to the grievant, their representative, and other persons officially involved in the grievance.
- b. The Superintendent shall within ten (10) working days following the hearing, communicate to the grievant and all other parties officially present at the hearing, their written decision, and the facts that are the basis for that decision.

#### 3. Level Three (Board Level)

a. If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered at Level Two, they may appeal to the School Board within ten (10) working days. The appeal shall be in writing and copies delivered to Board members,

Superintendent, and persons officially involved. The Board shall conduct the hearing. Since the members of the Board are functioning as hearing officers, those participating in the hearing shall comply with the definitions in Section A.6. and B.12. Those unable to qualify shall withdraw themselves from the hearing and in no way shall participate in the decision rendered at this level. The Board shall communicate to the grievant and all other parties officially present at the hearing, its written decision and the facts that are the basis for that decision within ten (10) working days from the date of the hearing.

b. All Board hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the Oregon Public Meetings Law. Meetings may be open as requested by the grievant except when in conflict with the public meetings law. Within ten (10) days after the Level Three hearing, the board shall render a decision, in writing, to all official parties.

### 4. Level Four (Arbitration Level)

- a. The Association will have ten (10) days following the Board's decision to notify the District of its intent to request arbitration of the dispute or if no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after the presentation, the Association may request to submit the grievance to arbitration.
- b. Upon timely receipt by the District of an Association notice to take a grievance to arbitration, the parties shall attempt to select a mutually acceptable arbitrator within fifteen (15) days. The parties agree to set a date for the arbitration hearing within thirty (30) calendar days, subject to the availability of the arbitrator.
- c. If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the Employment Relations Board shall be requested to provide a list. The parties shall then be bound by the rules and regulations of the American Arbitration Association.
- d. If any questions arise as to whether a particular dispute involves the interpretation, meaning or applications of any of the provisions of this Agreement, such a question will first be ruled upon by the arbitrator selected to hear the dispute. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the Arbitration will be conducted in accordance with the voluntary labor Arbitration Rules (expedited) of the American Arbitration Association in effect at the time (hereinafter referred to as the AAA Rules).
- e. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall set forth their finding of fact, reasoning, and conclusions on the issues submitted. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which is in violation

- of the terms of a written agreement. The decision shall be submitted to all interested parties.
- f. The costs of the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the District and the CEA.
- g. All decisions of said arbitrator shall be binding to both sides.

### ARTICLE 14 – EXTRA DUTY/EXTRA CURRICULAR

#### A. EXTRA DUTY

- 1. Compensation for Extra Duty work shall be increased by 4% for the 2025-2026 school year and is outlined in Appendix B-1, 4% for 2026-2027 and is outlined in Appendix B-2, and *for* 2027-2028, 4% and is outlined in Appendix B-3. The Extra Duty Schedule is modified to reflect one step in each pay range.
- 2. Vacancies in Extra Duty positions shall be emailed to all bargaining unit members. Bargaining unit members shall be encouraged to apply and shall be considered based on experience and qualifications. When filling vacancies within the extra-duty positions, the District may simultaneously consider both bargaining unit members and non-bargaining unit personnel. If the District uses non-bargaining unit personnel, the terms and conditions of their employment are not covered by the collective bargaining agreement.
- 3. Bargaining unit members holding extra duty assignments shall be evaluated on a separate extra duty evaluation form.
- 4. All extra duty positions listed in Appendix B are subject to annual appointment by the Board. Bargaining unit members may be terminated from extra duty positions for reasons that may be deemed good faith sufficient by the Board, but only if the member has been provided written notice of the possible termination, written reasons with any supporting documentation and the opportunity for a hearing before the Board prior to any final decision by the Board. Complaints against members holding extra duty positions shall be processed through the Complaint Procedure, as outlined in Article 18.
- 5. When new extra duty/extra-curricular activities are created and approved by the District, the District and the Association shall convene to establish the appropriate stipends to be paid to the employees for performing the additional duties and activities.

#### B. EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

- 1. Extra-Curricular activities may include, but are not limited to, ticket taking, gate supervision, dance chaperone, rooter bus chaperone, Saturday school supervision, and club/class activities not paid on the extra duty schedule.
- 2. All work outside the normal workday on extracurricular activities must be approved by the Administration. Administrative approval of the activity must also include approval of the appropriate adult supervisors.

- 3. Pay for bargaining unit member participation in any extracurricular activity beyond the normal workday shall be \$25.00 per hour. The sole exceptions, which shall not be paid, shall be two (2) other after-hours events as designated by the building principals.
- 4. Each secondary bargaining unit member may be required by the Administration to serve as advisor for one (1) student organization, and this advisorship will be during the workday, without extra compensation. Activities related to this advisorship that occur outside the normal workday must have the prior approval of the building principal. Before granting any such approval, the principal will consult with the advisor(s) and consider the expressed interest and concern of the advisor(s). If the bargaining unit member supervises the pre-approved activity, payment shall be in accordance with Article 13, section B. 3. above.
- 5. The District may use non-bargaining unit personnel to fill these positions.

### **ARTICLE 15 – INSURANCE**

A. The District will contribute on behalf of each full-time bargaining unit member the following monthly amounts toward insurance, which will be pooled:

1. Effective October 1, 2025: \$1760

2. Effective October 1, 2026: \$1822

3. Effective October 1, 2027: \$1886

Should the full- time bargaining unit member decide to choose a medical plan with the Health Savings Account (HSA) offered through OEBB, the District shall contribute the IRS employee only annual limit per month towards the participating member's HSA plan.

For example: in calendar year 2018 the (employee only) annual IRS limit is \$3450.00, which means the District shall contribute \$187.50 each month towards a member's HSA. Contributions for July and August will be made in June.

The District's contribution towards a member's HSA is contingent on the availability of excess monthly insurance cap funds for the member after insurance plan selections are made during open enrollment each benefit year.

Bargaining unit members are responsible for paying their own long-term disability insurance premiums through payroll deduction.

- B. Contributions for less than full-time educators shall be prorated, except that no contributions will be provided for educators working less than half time. Unit members may draw out of the pool amounts necessary to cover the programs outlined in Section C. If the pool does not cover the cost of the basic programs for all members, payroll deductions will be made to cover the remaining cost of insurance, according to a plan submitted by the Association.
- C. The insurance package shall include up to full-family medical-hospitalization, up to full-family dental with orthodontia, up to full-family vision, employee life and employee long-term disability coverage. The specific carriers and benefit levels will be determined by the Association in accordance with the expressed wishes of the staff as a group, after consultation with the Administration.
- D. All licensed employees must participate in the insurance plans, except where the employee provides evidence of duplicate medical coverage.
- E. Insurance benefits shall be for twelve (12) consecutive months each year. New educators shall receive coverage beginning October 1 or the first of the month following employment if hired after the start of the school year. For educators leaving the District after completing an entire school year, coverage shall continue until September 30. For educators who terminate employment before the end of the school year, District insurance coverage shall end at the close of the month employment terminates.

- F. The District shall establish an insurance pool from excess insurance monies available after employees have selected their benefit options. Bargaining unit members must declare their status prior to September 15, (i.e., employee only, employee +1, employee plus dependents) for insurance benefit purposes. This declaration will hold until the following September 15, when employees may change to another status.
  - Employees hired after October 1 each school year shall not be eligible for the pool until the next recalculation date. Pool amounts shall be distributed equally among employees based on their declared status. The pool amounts shall be recalculated once each year, at the half-way point of the insurance year (recalculation occurs in March and will be adjusted on the March payroll).
- G. The benefit programs identified herein shall be provided only in accordance with the underwriting rules and regulations set forth by the insurance carrier(s) in the policy (policies).

### **ARTICLE 16 – TUITION REIMBURSEMENT**

- A. If the District requires or requests an educator to take a course, the District will pay tuition cost pursuant to a written agreement signed before the course begins, and shall not count against the Tuition Reimbursement Fund outlined in paragraphs B and C in this article
- B. The District shall provide a Tuition Reimbursement Fund of \$20,000.00 until the completion of the 2023/24 school year. Beginning the 2024-25 school year, the Tuition Reimbursement Fund will be \$25,000 per year. Educators employed with the District on temporary contracts are not eligible to access funds from the tuition reimbursement program.
  - 1. This fund shall reimburse unit members for the full cost of upper division or graduate level courses if there are funds available in the tuition reimbursement fund. All courses must be completed with a grade of "C" or better or a "pass" in a pass/fail system.
  - 2. Reimbursement will be calculated upon submission of official grade slip and/or transcript and verification of actual costs.
  - 3. The District shall calculate an equal and fair ratio of reimbursement based on all approved credits that occur from July 1 (Summer) courses to June 30 (Spring) courses of each academic year. This reimbursement shall be paid in July of each year.
- C. If the \$20,000.00 fund referred to in Article 15, Section B. above is exhausted in any one (1) year, an additional seven hundred dollars (\$700) will be added for the next year. After the 24/25 SY, if the \$25,000 fund referred to in Article 16, Section B above is exhausted in any one (1) year, an additional \$500.00 will be added for the next year.
- D. Unused tuition reimbursement funds from a school year shall rollover to the subsequent school year with a total annual funds cap set at \$50,000. The rollover cannot exceed the total cap annually.

### **ARTICLE 17 – EARLY RETIREMENT**

- A. A bargaining unit member who has completed ten (10) years of service with the District and who retires under PERS shall have the option of an early retirement program which will provide the bargaining unit member a stipend of four hundred dollars (\$400) per month. Such payments will terminate after seventy-two (72) months or at the end of the month in which the bargaining unit member reaches the age of sixty-five (65), whichever is first.
- B. Retirees may use their stipends to purchase insurance through the group program, subject to the approval of the insurance carriers.
- C. A bargaining unit member exercising this option must give written notice thereof to the Superintendent no later than sixty (60) days prior to their retirement date.
- D. A bargaining unit member must have been hired prior to July 1, 2025 to be eligible for Article 17.
- E. A licensed bargaining unit member who has worked for Colton School District for at least 3 years and returns to work for the district after retirement for the purpose of substitute teaching, mentoring, training, etc, will be paid at the hourly rate of the column and step on which they retired.

### ARTICLE 18 – COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

#### A. NOTIFICATION AND REPRESENTATION

- 1 . An employee shall be informed of any complaint which is received by the administration from a patron, parent, or student, the substance of which may be used in evaluation of the employee or may be placed in the employee's personnel file.
- 2. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the complaint or at a mutually agreeable time, the building principal and the educator shall meet to discuss the complaint.
- 3. The educator, at their request, may have a representative present at all meetings involving this procedure, except for meetings held under B.1. below.

#### B. PROCEDURE AND RESOLUTIONS

- 1. If the educator wishes to meet with the complainant, the principal shall attempt to arrange the meeting. If the issues are resolved, no record will be retained unless the administrator deems the nature of the complaint to be of special concern.
- 2. When the administrator judges attempt at informal resolution to be no longer productive, the complaint will be reduced to writing and signed by the complainant. A copy shall be given to the educator. An unwritten or unsigned complaint shall not be processed further.
- 3. The administrator shall investigate a written, signed complaint. Upon completion of the investigation, the administrator shall decide that the complaint be dismissed, placed in the personnel file, or held at the building level. A recommendation for possible resolution may also be made. Copies of the investigation report and decisions shall be given to the educator. The decisions of the administrator may be appealed to the Superintendent for a final decision.
- 4. Any action to reprimand or otherwise discipline an employee as a result of a complaint investigation shall be by separate written document.

## C. DISPOSITION

- 1. Any complaint the administrator chooses not to discuss with the educator within the provision of Article 17, Section A. above shall be considered void.
- 2. A complaint may be deemed without merit by the Administration or School Board at any point in this procedure. In such cases, no record of the complaint will be retained, except in a confidential investigation file retained by the Superintendent for the purposes of documenting that an investigation was

conducted.

3. If a complaint has been substantiated and a record is to be placed in the employee's personnel file, the record shall include at least the following information: name of the employee against whom the complaint is made, the date and nature of the complaint, the name of the complainant(s), the administrative summary, and the disposition of the complaint. The educator may submit a written statement of disagreement, which will be attached to the record.

## **ARTICLE 19 - BARGAINING UNIT MEMBER EVALUATIONS**

# **Evaluation and Support of Members**

### A. Evaluation Purpose and Legal Compliance

The evaluation of bargaining unit members shall be conducted following Board-adopted policy and ORS 342.850. The evaluation process is intended to promote professional growth, enhance instructional effectiveness, and ensure high standards of teaching and learning across the District.

#### B. Evaluation Procedure and Orientation

All bargaining unit members shall receive a copy of the District's evaluation procedures at the beginning of each academic year. Newly hired bargaining unit members shall review the evaluation procedures and expectations with their assigned evaluator during the initial goal-setting conference.

C. Any substantial change in District evaluation procedure shall be done in collaboration with the Association, in accordance with ORS 342.850.

D. Any grievances concerning this Article may be appealed only to Level Three (3).

#### ARTICLE 20 – ASSOCIATION DUES AND PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

#### A. ASSOCIATION DUES

- 1. Dues Deduction Authorization. Prior to the first dues of the school year, and then for any employee who becomes a member of the Association after the start of the school year, the Association shall notify the District of bargaining unit members who have elected to have dues deducted from their paychecks and shall identify the dues to be deducted from each member. The Association shall also provide the District with written notice when a bargaining unit member should no longer have dues deducted. The District shall enact dues deduction changes on the pay period following notification and will prorate the dues deduction changes based on the date of the written authorization.
- 2. Processing Colton EA/OEA/NEA Dues Deductions. The District agrees to deduct Colton EA dues from the first paycheck in September. Dues for OEA/NEA shall be deducted in nine (9) consecutive, equal payments commencing with the October paycheck.
- 3. Remittance of Dues Checks. Colton EA dues payments will be deducted in the September paycheck each year and shall be remitted to the Colton EA Treasurer, along with a register identifying the deductions made from each member's paycheck.
  - Within ten (10) days after each pay period starting in October each school year, the District shall send to OEA, in a single payment, the combined OEA and NEA dues, including voluntary contributions, deducted for the month, along with an Excel-compatible register of the OEA/NEA dues, including voluntary Association contributions, deducted from each member's paycheck.
- 4. Indemnification. The Association agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the District harmless from employee or former-employee claims, orders, or judgments against the District concerning the dues deductions procedures outlined in this Article. The Association's obligations are contingent upon the District: 1) giving the Association at least two-week's notice, in writing, of any claim; 2) and fully cooperating with the Association and its designated counsel in the defense of the claim. The Association's obligation does not extend to criminal allegations or District conduct that would constitute an Unfair Labor Practice. In the event the District invokes this paragraph, the Association will provide the attorney to defend against the claim. In the event the District wishes to use its own attorney, the District will pay the fees and costs of said attorney.
- 5. Withdrawal of Dues Deduction Authorization. A bargaining unit member may request to drop membership and cease payroll deduction for dues by writing a letter to the Oregon Education Association (OEA). Such a request must be delivered to OEA

prior to the first day of October of any year for it to be effective October 1 of the same year. Otherwise the request shall be effective October 1 of ensuing year.

#### **B. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS**

1. Upon appropriate written request from the bargaining unit employee, the District shall deduct from the salaries of any bargaining unit employee and make appropriate remittance from the following approved deductions as provided for in District policy:

Negotiated Fringe Benefits
Annuities
Other deductions mutually acceptable to the District and Association

#### C. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

- 1. Employee List. Each month, the District shall provide to the OEA Membership Specialist an Excel-compatible database of each employee in the bargaining unit (both active and non-members) that includes employee ID, job classification, hours of work, worksite, cell, home and work phone numbers, home address or personal mailing address, work and personal email addresses, and date of hire. Whenever a new employee is hired into the bargaining unit, the District shall provide the above information, 10 calendar days of the employee's hire date.
- 2. Change in Employment Status. Monthly the District shall notify the OEA Membership Specialist whenever an employee in the bargaining unit is placed on an unpaid leave of absence, retires, is laid off, resigns, changes in classification/work hours or changes their name.

### ARTICLE 21 - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

### A. SAFE WORKING CONDITIONS

1. The District and the Association agree to work together to promote safe working conditions and learning conditions. In the event that a teacher considers a situation to be unsafe, the teacher shall report to the principal and Association building representative in writing (verbally if it is an emergency) the unsafe condition and appropriate correction if possible. The principal (or designee) will immediately investigate the problem and act as necessary to correct the unsafe situation. In accordance with state and federal health and safety laws,

no staff members will be subject to retaliation for reporting concerns in good faith.

- 2. OAR 839-004-0001 through 839-004-0021, employees shall not be required to work under unsafe or hazardous conditions to perform tasks which endanger their health, safety, or well-being. The supervisor will either:
  - a. Assign the employee to another work place,
  - b. Allow the employee to leave work, or
  - c. Judge the work place to be safe based on clearly defined workforce safety definitions collaboratively developed by the District and Association, and require the employee to return to work.
- 3. The employee may appeal the supervisor's decision to the Superintendent. If an employee is allowed to leave work due to unsafe or hazardous conditions, it will be with no loss of pay.
- 4. A copy of the safety issue report will be completed by the bargaining unit member and/or principal. One copy will be given to the safety committee, one copy to the Superintendent, and one copy kept by the principal. The safety committee and/or principal will communicate back to the bargaining unit member any recommendations or explanation of how the problem will be resolved and when.

#### B. SAFETY CONCERNS VIA LABOR-MANAGEMENT MEETING

 The District agrees to maintain Health and Safety concerns as a permanent agenda item at regularly scheduled Labor Management Meetings. At these meetings, the District and Association agrees to review Safety Committee minutes and any related building reports. Both parties agree to be communication liaisons between members, administration, and the Safety Committee.

### ARTICLE 22 - CLASS SIZE & CASELOAD

- A. The Association shall be provided with a District class size and caseload report by class/caseload (head counts, not averages) at the same time as reports are made to the State Department of Education. Upon receipt of the state report, the Association may make recommendations for the District's consideration to rectify any imbalances in class size.
- B. When funding allows, the District's desire is to meet the following guidelines for class size averages.

The threshold for problem-solving identified in the following charts will trigger problem-solving strategies as described below the chart.

Grade Level	Threshold for Problem Solving
K-1	22
2-3	26
4-5	28
6-12	30
Electives	30

- 1. Problem-solving strategies: If the classroom teacher has concerns about their current class size which has entered the threshold above, the District agrees to pursue the following options after consultation with the educator(s) involved to determine mutually agreeable solution(s):
  - a. Transfer/Reassignment of students;
  - b. Additional Paraeducator time for educators;
  - c. Developing split or blended classrooms;
  - d. Adding certified (licensed) staff;
  - e. Other options mutually agreeable between the educator(s) and the District;
- 2. If a specialist has concerns about their current caseload, the same problem solving strategies will be followed.
- 3. The Association will be informed of any classes in the threshold for problem-solving via the regularly-scheduled Labor-Management Committee meeting.

### **ARTICLE 23 – TERMS OF AGREEMENT**

- A. This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2025 and shall be binding upon the Board and the Association and members of the bargaining unit. It shall remain in full force and effect through June 30, 2028.
- B. The parties may, by mutual agreement, enter into negotiations over matters of concern which arise during the life of this contract.
- C. If any provision of the contract is declared null and void by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this contract shall remain in full force and effect. Upon request of either side, the parties shall commence negotiations under ORS 243.698 for a replacement of the voided section.
- D. All individual contracts shall be in compliance with this Agreement. In cases of direct conflict between adopted Board policy and this Agreement, the Agreement shall prevail.
- E. Within thirty (30) days of the signing of this Agreement, the Association shall print and provide sufficient copies for distribution to the current staff and all new hires. The District shall provide copies to the administration and the Board.

kaci Bleau	Kaci Bleau	9/9/2025	
Name and Title, Colton Education	Association President	Date	
Cr-	Cezanne Decristoforo	9/11/2025	
Name and Title, Board Chairperson	1	Date	
Dave kline	Dave Kline	9/11/2025	
Name and Title, Superintendent		Date	

APPENDIX A-1
Colton Salary Schedule 2025-2026

Step	BA	BA+24	BA+45	BA+60 MA	BA+84 MA+24	MA+45
1	\$49,623	\$50,953	\$52,450	\$55,262	\$56,6158	\$57,944
2	\$51,852	\$53,140	\$54,770	\$57,633	\$59,000	\$60,287
3	\$54,077	\$55,328	\$57,090	\$60,018	\$61,383	\$62,630
4	\$56,307	\$57,515	\$59,408	\$62,402	\$63,766	\$64,974
5	\$58,535	\$59,702	\$61,729	\$64,785	\$66,151	\$67,318
6	\$60,762	\$61,889	\$64,049	\$67,168	\$68,534	\$69,661
7	\$62,991	\$64,077	\$66,369	\$69,553	\$70,918	\$72,005
8	\$65,220	\$66,262	\$68,688	\$71,935	\$73,301	\$74,347
9	\$67,448	\$68,451	\$71,008	\$74,319	\$75,685	\$76,690
10	\$70,819	\$70,638	\$73,328	\$76,703	\$78,069	\$79,033
11	\$73,652	\$74,168	\$75,648	\$79,087	\$80,453	\$81,377
12	\$0.00	\$77,135	\$79,430	\$81,471	\$82,838	\$83,722
13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$82,608	\$83,854	\$85,220	\$86,064
14	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$88,047	\$89,481	\$90,914
15	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$91,568	\$93,061	\$94,550
16	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$96,542

Note: 4% increase over 2024-25 salary schedule.

APPENDIX A-2
Colton Salary Schedule 2026-2027

Step	BA	BA+24	BA+45	BA+60 MA	BA+84 MA+24	MA+45
1	\$51,608	\$52,991	\$54,548	\$57,472	\$58,880	\$60,262
2	\$53,927	\$55,266	\$56,961	\$59,939	\$61,360	\$62,699
3	\$56,241	\$57,542	\$59,374	\$62,419	\$63,839	\$65,136
4	\$58,560	\$59,816	\$61,785	\$64,899	\$66,317	\$67,573
5	\$60,877	\$62,091	\$64,199	\$67,377	\$68,798	\$70,011
6	\$63,193	\$64,365	\$66,611	\$69,855	\$71,276	\$72,448
7	\$65,511	\$66,641	\$69,024	\$72,336	\$73,755	\$74,886
8	\$67,829	\$68,913	\$71,436	\$74,813	\$76,234	\$77,321
9	\$70,146	\$71,190	\$73,849	\$77,292	\$78,713	\$79,758
10	\$73,652	\$73,464	\$76,262	\$79,772	\$81,192	\$82,195
11	\$76,599	\$77,135	\$78,674	\$82,251	\$83,672	\$84,633
12	\$0.00	\$80,221	\$82,609	\$84,730	\$86,152	\$87,0671
13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$85,913	\$87,209	\$88,629	\$89,507
14	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$91,569	\$93,0561	\$94,551
15	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$95,231	\$96,784	\$98,332
16	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$100,404

Note: 4% increase over 2025-26 salary schedule.

APPENDIX A-3
Colton Salary Schedule 2027-2028

Step	BA	BA+24	BA+45	BA+60 MA	BA+84 MA+24	MA+45
1	\$53,673	\$55,112	\$56,730	\$59,772	\$61,236	\$62,673
2	\$56,085	\$57,477	\$59,240	\$62,337	\$63,815	\$65,207
3	\$58,491	\$59,844	\$61,749	\$64,916	\$66,393	\$67,742
4	\$60,903	\$62,209	\$64,257	\$67,495	\$68,970	\$70,276
5	\$63,313	\$64,575	\$66,767	\$70,073	\$71,550	\$72,812
6	\$65,721	\$66,940	\$69,276	\$72,650	\$74,128	\$75,346
7	\$68,132	\$69,307	\$71,785	\$75,230	\$76,706	\$77,882
8	\$70,543	\$71,670	\$74,294	\$77,806	\$79,284	\$80,414
9	\$72,952	\$74,038	\$76,803	\$80,384	\$81,862	\$82,949
10	\$76,559	\$76,403	\$79,313	\$82,963	\$84,440	\$85,483
11	\$79,663	\$80,221	\$81,821	\$85,542	\$87,019	\$88,019
12	\$0.00	\$83,430	\$85,913	\$88,120	\$89,599	\$90,554
13	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$89,350	\$90,698	\$92,175	\$93,088
14	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$95,232	\$96,784	\$98,334
15	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$99,041	\$100,656	\$102,266
16	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$104,421

Note: 4% increase over 2026-27 salary schedule.

## **APPENDIX B-1**

## COLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

## EXTRA DUTY SCHEDULE

### 2025-2026

POSITION	STIPEND
HS Athletic Director	\$7,634
HS Head Coach	\$4,606
HS JV Coach	\$3,083
HS 3rd Coach	\$2,770
HS Student Council/MS Head Coach	\$1,913
MS Asst Coach/Annual Newspaper	\$1,289
FFA Advisor	\$4,087
Fall/Spring Drama	\$3,250
Jr Class Advisor	\$269
CMS Athletic Director	\$1,894
Music Director	\$2,789
Building Assessment Coord	\$615
Elem/MS Student Council Advisor	\$491
FIT Team	\$2,291
District Assessment Coord	\$4,023
MTSS	\$2,712
Building Technology Support	\$3,681

Note: 4% increase over 2024-25 extra duty schedule.

## **APPENDIX B-2**

## COLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

## EXTRA DUTY SCHEDULE

### 2026-2027

POSITION	STIPEND
HS Athletic Director	\$7,939
HS Head Coach	\$4,790
HS JV Coach	\$3,206
HS 3rd Coach	\$2,881
HS Student Council/MS Head Coach	\$1,990
MS Asst Coach/Annual Newspaper	\$1,341
FFA Advisor	\$4,250
Fall/Spring Drama	\$3,380
Jr Class Advisor	\$280
CMS Athletic Director	\$1,970
Music Director	\$2,901
Building Assessment Coord	\$640
Elem/MS Student Council Advisor	\$511
FIT Team	\$2,383
District Assessment Coord	\$4,184
MTSS	\$2,820
Building Technology Support	\$3,828

Note: 4% increase over 2025-26 extra duty schedule.

## **APPENDIX B-3**

## COLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

## EXTRA DUTY SCHEDULE

## 2027-2028

POSITION	STIPEND
HS Athletic Director	\$8,257
HS Head Coach	\$4,982
HS JV Coach	\$3,334
HS 3rd Coach	\$2,996
HS Student Council/MS Head Coach	\$2,070
MS Asst Coach/Annual Newspaper	\$1,395
FFA Advisor	\$4,420
Fall/Spring Drama	\$3,515
Jr Class Advisor	\$291
CMS Athletic Director	\$2,049
Music Director	\$3,017
Building Assessment Coord	\$666
Elem/MS Student Council Advisor	\$531
FIT Team	\$2,478
District Assessment Coord	\$4,351
MTSS	\$2,933
Building Technology Support	\$3,981

Note: 4% increase over 2026-27 extra duty schedule.

## MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

#### Between the

### **COLTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION**

#### And the

### **COLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT**

**RE:** Athletic Passes

Having reached certain understandings, the parties declare as follows:

1. The District will allow current staff members to use their staff photo ID card to enter all athletic programs for the school year shown on the ID, free of charge. Family members living in the same household will be allowed to enter on the current year ID badge.

kaci Blean	Kaci Bleau	9/9/2025
Jame and Title Colton Educ	eation Association President	Date
taine and Title, Colton Edde		Bute